
1 
 

CITY OF DELAWARE 
CITY COUNCIL 

CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
1 SOUTH SANDUSKY STREET 

7:00 P.M. 
 

AGENDA 
 

REGULAR MEETING May 8, 2017 
 
1. ROLL CALL 
 
2. INVOCATION – Nicol Gazi, Islamic Center of Delaware County 
 
3. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  
    
4. APPROVAL of the Motion Summary of the regular meeting of Council 

held on April 24, 2017, as recorded and transcribed. 
 

5. CONSENT AGENDA 
A. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Shade Tree 

Commission Meeting held on March 28, 2017.  
B. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Planning Commission 

Meeting held on April 5, 2017.  
C. Acceptance of the Motion Summary for the Civil Service 

Commission Meeting held on January 4, 2017. 
D. Establish May 22, 2017 at 7:20 p.m. as the date and time for a 

public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 17-32, an 
ordinance approving an amendment to Chapter 1111 Subdivision 
Regulations of the Planning and Zoning Code pertaining to 
acceptance of public improvements and bonding.  

E. Establish May 22, 2017 at 7:25 p.m. as the date and time for a 
public hearing and second reading of Ordinance No. 17-33, an 
ordinance approving a Street Vacation of Stratford Drive for 
Coughlin’s Crossing encompassing approximately 77.102 acres 
zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use 
Overlay District) and located east of US 23, west of Stratford Road 
and north of Meeker Way.  

   
6. LETTERS, PETITIONS, AND PUBLIC COMMENTS 
 
7. COMMITTEE REPORTS  
 
8. FIFTH READING of Ordinance No. 17-16, an ordinance approving an 



2 
 

amendment to Chapter 1168.07 replacement of removed trees of Chapter 
1168 Tree Preservation Regulations of the Planning and Zoning Code.  

 
9. SECOND READING of Resolution No. 17-29, a resolution accepting the 

Park and Facilities Naming and Dedication Policy.  
 
10.  7:15 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

17-29, an ordinance repealing and replacing Section 929 of the City of 
Delaware Streets, Utilities, and Public Services Code establishing general 
rules and regulations for the collection of refuse.  

 
11. 7:20 P.M. PUBLIC HEARING AND SECOND READING of Ordinance No. 

17-30, an ordinance amending Section 521.08 of Chapter 521 of the 
Codified Ordinance of the City of Delaware, Ohio establishing authority 
to remove litter, and the right to appeal of a notice of violation.  

 
12. CONSIDERATION of Resolution No. 17-30, a resolution authorizing the 

City Manager to enter into an amended agreement with Delaware County 
Office of Homeland Security and Emergency Management (DCOHSEM) to 
coordinate Emergency Management Activities within Delaware County.  

 
13.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-31, an ordinance amending the 

2017 appropriations ordinance to provide funding for completing a multi-
use trail extension on the Springfield Branch Trail, and declaring an 
emergency.  

 
14.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-32, an ordinance approving an 

amendment to Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations of the Planning 
and Zoning Code pertaining to acceptance of public improvements and 
bonding.  

 
15. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-33, an ordinance approving a 

Street Vacation of Stratford Drive for Coughlin’s Crossing encompassing 
approximately 77.102 acres zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located east of US 23, west of 
Stratford Road and north of Meeker Way.  

 
16.  CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-34, an ordinance approving a 

Final Subdivision Plat for Coughlin’s Crossing encompassing 
approximately 77.102 acres zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District with a 
Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located east of US 23, west of 
Stratford Road and north of Meeker Way.  

 
 



3 
 

17. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-35, an ordinance approving a 
Final Development Plan for Coughlin’s Crossing Phase 1 (infrastructure) 
encompassing approximately 77.102 acres zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located east of 
US 23, west of Stratford Road and north of Meeker Way.  

 
18. CONSIDERATION of Ordinance No. 17-36, an ordinance amending the 

2017 Appropriations Ordinance to provide funding for debt issuance 
costs associated with the various purpose improvement and refunding 
bonds, series 2017 issued by the City, and declaring an emergency.   

 
19. EXECUTIVE SESSION: pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Section 121.22 

(G) (3) pending or imminent court action, Section 121.22 (G) (1) 
personnel, Section 121.22 (G) (5) matters required to be kept confidential 
by State statute, Section 121.22 (G) (2) acquisition of property for public 
purpose and 121.22(G) (8) consideration of confidential information 
related to a request for economic development assistance. 

  
20. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
21. COUNCIL COMMENTS  
 
22. ADJOURNMENT 











































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 8    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-16    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIFTH    PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       March 27, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 1168.07 
REPLACEMENT OF REMOVED TREES OF CHAPTER 1168 TREE 
PRESERVATION REGULATIONS OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING CODE.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
The purpose of the amendments to Chapter 1168 is to clearly identify the tree 
banking options for replacement trees and how any funds acquired via the 
payment in lieu of planting regulations can be spent.  The updated code clarifies 
for applicants (developers), staff and the public the processes outlined in current 
code as well as the current and past administrative practice of the City in this 
regard.  The intent of replacement and removed trees overall is to maintain an 
equivalent tree canopy Citywide before and after removal and/or construction.  
Overall then, the new code sections simply codify the current and past practices 
of the city while making this section much clearer. 
 
UPDATE:  Please see attached memo. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1130.04 amendments initiated by the Planning Commission must 
be appointed by City Council. 
 



COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on March 1, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 
Memo 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-16 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO 
CHAPTER 1168.07 REPLACEMENT OF REMOVED 
TREES OF CHAPTER 1168 TREE PRESERVATION 
REGULATIONS OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING CODE. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of  
March 1, 2017, recommended approval of an amendment to Chapter 1168.07 
Replacement of Removed Trees of Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations of 
the Planning and Zoning Code (PC 2017-0014). 

 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the amendment to Chapter 1168.07 Replacement of 
Removed Trees of Chapter 1168 Tree Preservation Regulations of the Planning and 
Zoning Code is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



 

 

 
MEMORANDUM 
TO: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 

FROM:  David M. Efland, AICP, Director of Planning & Community Development                
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 

DATE:   05/03/2017 

RE: Revised Recommendation for Ordinance 17-16 - Amendments to Chapter 1168 
Tree Preservation, Case 2017-0014. 

After City Council discussion, we have  reviewed numerous landscaping and tree codes 
around the region, spoken with Staff from other communities, and reviewed the proposed 
changes previously recommended by Staff, Shade Tree Commission, and Planning 
Commission. We make the following recommendations:  

Tree Fee -  Our current fee of $100 per caliper inch is among the lowest for jurisdictions 
allowing a payment in lieu of planting, based upon minimally qualifying tree sizes as 
required in each jurisdiction.  At our standard minimum required tree of 1.75 caliper 
inches, this equates to a single tree replacement being effectively $175 for a minimally 
qualifying tree.  Today -- and even when this subject was studied in about 2009 -- to 
purchase, transport, and plant a tree of minimally qualifying size and variety costs on 
average about $250 or about $143 per caliper inch if put into those terms.  This means that 
the city is effectively allowing a payment in lieu of planting to be slightly under the cost for 
a single tree, on average, using a straight calculation method.  It is important to note that 
the city, or a private developer, purchasing and installing trees in volume can typically 
benefit from volume discounts, making discussion of the cost or payment in isolation 
difficult and complicated. 
 
We suggest a two-part process: (1)  consider and decide upon the revisions in Ordinance 
17-16, as submitted; (2) a determination by City Council on whether to undertake a 
subsequent full review of the Tree Preservation Chapter. 
 

1. ORD. 17-16 - We recommend  consideration of Ordinance 17-16 in case 2017-0014.  
Should City Council desire to remove the sentence in 1168.07(a)(3) as proposed, “At 
no time shall the fee be less than $100 per caliper inch of required replacement,” we 
are amenable to that.  The caliper-inch fee should, however, be placed within our 
newly updated and consolidated fee schedule at the next annual review to ensure 



 
 

 

the fee is contained appropriately within our ordinances and can be annually 
reviewed thereafter.  The current proposed changes reflect past practices and 
actually allow a bit more flexibility for a property developer to utilize off-site areas 
to plant trees while ensuring their permanent conservation at those sites.  The 
proposed legislation allows for expenditure of funds within the Tree Fund to replant 
trees within our community and is important to enact to allow those efforts to 
continue. 

2. Tree Preservation Chapter Discussion - City Council should discuss if it wants to 
direct Staff to conduct a full review of the Tree Preservation Chapter.  If so directed, 
we would work to scope out the effort including a timeline and review steps.  The 
scoping exercise would take several weeks to complete.  A full review effort would 
likely take until at least the end of 2017.  If City Council’s direction at this time is to 
review the entire chapter, review should be through Staff, Shade Tree Commission, 
and Planning Commission - and include opportunities for various stakeholders to 
comment.  Again, in about 2009, the subject was studied to a certain degree but 
consensus did not emerge.  Today, we have many examples of planned 
developments that have successfully been legislatively approved utilizing a tree 
preservation calculous.  . 

 



















  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  9    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-29 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE PARK AND FACILITIES NAMING AND 
DEDICATION POLICY. 
 
BACKGROUND:  
The City of Delaware does not currently have a park and facilities naming policy 
in place. A request has been made to rename Eastside park and the proposed 
policy would outline procedures to name newly acquired or developed or as-yet 
unnamed parks and recreation facilities.  
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To to provide a clear process for naming and dedicating parks and facilities, 
ensure that parks and recreational areas are identified and located, ensure that 
names given are consistent with the values and characteristics of the City of 
Delaware, assure the quality of the title/name so that it will serve the purpose 
of the city in a permanent manner, encourage public participation and input, 
and encourage and recognize the dedication of lands, or donations by individuals 
or group. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
The action is being taken as a result of the Parks and Recreation Board 
recommendation at the April 18, 2017 meeting.  
 
 



FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resource Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Park and Facilities Naming and Dedication Policy 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-29 
 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE PARK AND 
FACILITIES NAMING AND DEDICATION POLICY. 

 
WHEREAS, a need exists to establish a policy to name newly acquired or 

developed or as-yet unnamed parks and recreation facilities; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Park and Facilities Naming and Dedication Policy will 
establish criteria and procedures to be followed in selecting names to be 
submitted to City Council; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board endorsed the policy 

on April 18, 2017 as outlined in the attached exhibits. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 

SECTION 1.  Adopt the Park and Facilities Naming and Dedication Policy 
as outlined in the attached exhibits. 

 
SECTION 2. That this resolution shall take effect and be in force 

immediately after its passage. 
 

PASSED: _________________________, 2017 ACCEPT____ REJECT____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 
    CITY CLERK  MAYOR 



CITY OF DELAWARE 
PARKS AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
PARK AND FACILITIES NAMING AND DEDICATION POLICY 
 

Page 1 of 3 
5/3/2017 

1.0 POLICY: 
1.1  It is the policy of the City of Delaware, Parks and Natural Resources to name 

newly acquired or developed or as-yet unnamed parks (or portions of park as 
described below) and recreation facilities, after following the procedures outlined 
below. 

1.2  Parks may name significant portions of an otherwise named park, such as a 
fountain, playfield, pavilion, skate area, or playground. 

  
 
2.0 PURPOSE OF POLICY: 

2.1 The purpose of the park and facilities naming and dedication policy is to provide a 
clear process for naming and dedicating parks and facilities owned and managed 
by the Parks and Natural Resources Department. 

2.2 Ensure that parks and recreational areas are easily identified and located. 
2.3 Ensure that names given are consistent with the values and characteristics of the 

City of Delaware. 
2.4 Assure the quality of the title/name, so that it will serve the purpose of the city in 

a permanent manner. 
2.5 Encourage public participation and input in order to fully represent the best 

interest of the area affected. 
2.6 Encourage and recognize the dedication of lands, or donations by individuals or 

groups. 
 
3.0  DEFINITIONS: 

3.1  Parks and Recreation Advisory Board (PRAB) – a citizen board created by the 
city Charter to advise the Parks and Natural Resources Director, the Mayor, the 
City Manager, City Council and other city departments with respect to park and 
natural resource matters. 

3.2  Parks and Recreation Facilities – all properties and facilities in the park and 
recreation system of the City under ownership, management and/or control of the 
City of Delaware Parks and Natural Resources. 

 
4.0  RESPONSIBILITY: 

4.1  The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board is authorized to establish criteria and 
procedures to be followed in selecting names to be submitted to City Council. 

 
5.0  PROCEDURES: 

5.1  Staff, city residents, community leaders and organizations interested in proposing 
a name for a park, recreational area or facility must submit written 
recommendations, petitions, etc. for presentation to the Parks and Natural 
Resources Director for consideration by the Parks and Recreation Advisory 
Board. Recommendations need to describe in detail why the candidate merits such 
recognition. The Parks and Natural Resources Director will provide staff support. 



CITY OF DELAWARE 
PARKS AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
PARK AND FACILITIES NAMING AND DEDICATION POLICY 
 

Page 2 of 3 
5/3/2017 

5.2  The Parks and Natural Resources Department will use the media, community 
groups, notification to those who have participated in community meetings 
relating to the development and or acquisition of the park site, and appropriate 
signage to solicit suggestions for names from organizations and individuals. The 
Parks and Natural Resources Department will acknowledge and record for 
consideration all suggestions, solicited or not. 

5.3  After considering the names and applying the criteria set forth in 6.0 below, the 
Parks and Natural Resources Director shall forward naming recommendations to 
the Parks and Recreation Advisory Board Chair, and provide the historical or 
other supportive information as appropriate to justify the recommendations. 

5.4  The Parks and Recreation Advisory Board shall consider all requests and submit a 
formal recommendation for names deemed worthy of consideration to the City 
Manager and City Council. 

5.5 The City Council will allow for public input and comment. 
5.6 The City Council will confirm park, recreation areas, and facility names by 

resolution. 
5.7 The City Council has final approval and may reject any naming or renaming 

request. If City Council rejects naming or renaming request the application will 
return to the Park & Recreation Advisory Board for submission of a new name. 

 
6.0  CRITERIA: 

6.1.  To avoid duplication, confusing similarity, or inappropriateness, the PRAB, in 
considering name suggestions, will review existing park and facility names in the 
park system. 

6.2  In naming a park or facility, the PRAB will consider geographical location, 
historical or cultural significance, distinctive natural or geological features, and 
the wishes of the community in which it is located. 

6.3 In naming community centers and other facilities, the PRAB will give 
considerable weight to the names that reflect the geographic location that gives 
identity to the community. 

6.4 Parks and recreation facilities may be named for a person subject to the following 
conditions: the person must be deceased for a minimum of one year, and the 
person must have made a significant positive contribution to parks, recreation, or 
culture in the community without which the park/facility may not exist, or in 
which the individual’s contributions enhanced a program or facility in an 
extraordinary way. The City will bear the cost of the sign, plaque or monument 
indicating the name of the individual for whom the facility is named. 

6.5 As a general rule, portions of a park or recreation facility will not have a name 
other than that of the entire facility. The Committee may consider exceptions in 
cases where, as a revenue or fundraising opportunity, a nomination is submitted to 
name a room within a community center after a corporate sponsor or in cases 
where an area within a park is distinctive enough, in the view of the Committee, 
to merit its own name. 



CITY OF DELAWARE 
PARKS AND NATURAL RESOURCES 
POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
PARK AND FACILITIES NAMING AND DEDICATION POLICY 
 

Page 3 of 3 
5/3/2017 

6.6 When naming after a person or persons, written documentation of approval by 
next of kin to be honored (if available/possible) is required as part of the proposal. 

6.8  Because temporary “working” designations tend to be retained, the Parks and 
Natural Resources Director will carry out the naming process for a new park 
facility as early as possible after its acquisition or development. Facilities will 
bear number designations until the naming process results in adoption of a name. 

 
7.0  EXCLUSIONS 

7.1 Naming associations with tobacco, alcohol, contraceptives, religious 
organizations, political candidates or adjudicated felons are prohibited. 

7.2 The dedication of small park amenities with an identifiable lifespan and not 
intended to be permanent such as fixed park benches and tables shall be addressed 
under a separate parks policy. 

 
8.0 RENAMING 

8.1 The intent of naming is for permanent recognition. The renaming of parks and 
facilities is strongly discouraged. It is recommended that efforts to change a name 
be subject to the most crucial examination so as not to diminish the original 
justification for the name or discount the value of the prior contributors. Parks 
named for subjects, other than individuals, may be changed in name only if the 
current name is ineffectual or inappropriate. 

8.2 The same criteria and procedures will apply to renaming an existing park or 
facility. 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  10    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-29    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       May 8, 2017 at 7:15 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E. 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING SECTION 929 OF THE CITY OF 
DELAWARE STREETS, UTILITIES AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE 
ESTABLISHING GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR THE 
COLLECTION OF REFUSE. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City recently completed the process of reviewing and establishing revised 
refuse collection rates in association with the provision of residential and 
commercial refuse collection service throughout the community.  As part of 
that process, several policies concerning existing regulations and practices 
were reviewed and determined to require updating in order to better reflect 
current practices and industry standards regarding the collection of refuse.    
In order to establish fair and equitable service options to all city refuse 
customers, certain modifications to the current rules are necessary specifically 
concerning customers utilizing dumpster service.   
 
Additional updates are included as well to bring the definitions in the code up 
to current understanding and application, and to include new practices such 
as the utility of publically accessible dumpster collection.                         
 
Please note that the included Chapter 929 is the replacement document for 
refuse collection services.  



REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Current rules require any residential premise or customer to utilize city refuse 
collection services, whether via tipcart or dumpster collection.  Proposed 
revisions will allow for any customer, whether residential or commercial, 
utilizing dumpster services to have the option of subscribing to city or private 
refuse collection services.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Potential changes to the rules governing refuse collection where discussed at 
the recent Public Works and Utilities Committee who subsequently deferred the 
presentation of such changes to full council for additional consideration.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Providing the opportunity for existing multi-family development customers to 
opt out of city refuse collection service will reduce both revenue and cost 
associated with the provision of commercial collection operations by the city.  It 
is not clear as to the total impact this change will have until better 
determination can be made as to how many existing customers may switch 
from city to private collection service. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Allows for multi-family developments that utilize dumpster collection service to 
seek private collection service is so desired. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Chapter 929-revised 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-29 
 

AN ORDINANCE REPEALING AND REPLACING 
SECTION 929 OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE STREETS, 
UTILITIES AND PUBLIC SERVICES CODE 
ESTABLISHING GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS 
FOR THE COLLECTION OF REFUSE. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware provides refuse collection service to its 

residents and businesses within the community; and 
 
WHEREAS, the rules and regulations regarding the manner in which 

refuse collection service shall operate require periodic update and revision to 
conform to current practices and industry standard; and  

 
WHEREAS, a comprehensive review of the refuse collection rates and 

program has been under consideration by the city resulting in desired changes 
to the refuse collection code; and   

 
WHEREAS, Chapter 929 of the STREETS, UTILITIES AND PUBLIC 

SERVICES CODE shall be modified to include updated language detailing the 
current practices and regulations associated with the collection and disposal of 
refuse within the city.   

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
SECTION 1.  That Chapter 929 of the Codified Ordinances of the City of 

Delaware is hereby amended and replaced in its entirety by the following new 
section (attached hereto)  
 
 SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _________________________        ________________________     

CITY CLERK         MAYOR 



 

 

  Page 1 

CHAPTER 929. - REFUSE COLLECTION 

 

929.01. - Definitions.  

As used in this chapter:  

a) "Bag Tag" is a sticker that may be purchased and placed on bags of 

household generated refuse for disposal exceeding the allowable 

volume of refuse which can be contained within a tipcart.  

b) “Bulk Item” means individual items too large to fit a tipcart container 

including but not limited to furniture, appliances, and exercise 

equipment. 

c) "Commercial premises" means all premises in the City other than 

those defined as residential premises, including institutions, private 

and public, charitable and non-charitable, where refuse may be 

generated.  

d) “Construction Waste” means building materials and debris resulting 

from or accumulating in the construction, alteration or major 

repairing of any building or structure.   

e) "Director" means the Director of Public Works of the City.  

f) “Dumpster” means a large steel refuse container with closeable lids. 

g) "Dwelling unit" means one room or a suite of two or more rooms 

designed for or used by one family or housekeeping unit for living 

and/or sleeping purposes and having only one kitchen or kitchenette.  

h) "Multi-family premise" means all residential premises in the City with 

two or more dwelling units used for the purpose of human habitation 

which contain sleeping quarters and/or cooking facilities for two or 

more families or housekeeping units living independently of each 

other.  

i) “Publically accessible dumpsters” – means any dumpster owned by 

the City and accessible for refuse disposal by multiple property 

owners requiring both residential and/or commercial refuse service. 

 

j) "Putrescible waste”, includes every refuse accumulation of animal, 

fruit or vegetable matter, used or intended for food, or that attends 

dealing in or storing of meat, fish, fowl, fruit or vegetables.  



 

 

  Page 2 

 

 

k) "Recyclable Material" means materials that can be recovered from the 

general refuse stream to be reused in another form following a 

reprocessing cycle including but not limited to plastic, glass and 

metal beverage containers, paper, magazines, newsprint and 

cardboard. 

 

l) “Recycling Bin” means an 18-gallon rectangular plastic container for 

disposing of recyclable materials.  

 

m) "Refuse" means garbage, trash or rubbish which is accumulated by 

individuals and businesses in their normal day-to-day operations, 

excluding construction waste, recyclable material and yard waste. 

 

n) "Refuse collector" means the City and any and all of its authorized 

agents or employees connected with the collection and disposal of 

refuse.  

o) "Residential premises" means all single-family and multi-family 

premises used for the purpose of human habitation which contain 

sleeping quarters and/or cooking facilities for the use of individual 

and/or separate households.  

p) “Tipcart” means 32-gallong, 64-gallon or 96 gallon wheeled refuse 

cart with closeable lid, serviceable by semi-automated collection 

equipment.    

q) "Yard Waste" means lawn trimmings, leaves, vines, brush, whole 

Christmas trees during the month of January, garden waste and 

other vegetation that are compostable and biodegradable. 

 

929.02. – Residential refuse customers.  

a) Each single family residential premise(s) in the City shall subscribe to 
City refuse collection service.   

b) Each multi-family residential premise(s) in the City that can reasonably 

accommodate the storage and weekly servicing of standard tipcart 
collection containers as determined by the Director, shall subscribe to 

City refuse collection service.   



 

 

  Page 3 

c) Multifamily premises constructed without garages, car ports, or other 
such enclosures suitable for the storage of tipcart containers may be 
serviced through dumpster units either through the City, or via private 

refuse collection services, and shall be considered by the City as 
commercial customers subject to commercial rates.  

 

929.03. – Commercial refuse customers.  

a) Commercial customers shall be serviced using dumpsters of appropriate 

size and frequency to provided adequate capacity for both weekday and 

weekend use, and are subject to commercial collection rates.   

b) Commercial customers that generate a small volume of non-putrescible 

refuse on a weekly basis may be serviced via tipcart(s) collection at the 

same rate per container that residential customers pay, provided tipcarts 

can be reasonably accommodated on the property out of public view.    

 

 

929.04. – Publically accessible dumpsters.  

In some instances, refuse service may be provided for both residential 

and commercial customers through use of a publically owned dumpster 

positioned in predetermined locations and open to use by multiple property 

owners.  The size and rate of service of these dumpsters is variable and 

depends on the number of customers using the dumpster at a given time and 

quantity of weekly waste generated. 

929.05. – Refuse containers; specifications; placement; disposition.  

a) Tipcarts for residential customers shall be initially paid for by the 

customer and distributed by the City, and remain the property of the 
City.  Repairs to and replacement of existing tipcarts necessary as a 

result of normal usage and wear/tear, shall be provided by the City at no 
charge to the customer.   

b) Dumpster containers housed within new multi-family developments 

serviced by the City shall be purchased by the property owner and 
distributed through the City, and remain the property of the City. 

c) Dumpsters for commercial customers not servicing residential 
households shall be provided by the City.   

d) The maximum weight of a fully-loaded tipcart container with the lid 

closed shall not exceed the manufacturer’s recommended max load.  
Containers exceeding these restrictions may not be serviced. 



 

 

  Page 4 

e) Recycling containers are provided by the City and shall be uniform in 
appearance, size and function wherever serviced by the city.   

f) Tipcarts, recycling containers and yard waste shall be placed at the 

location specified by the city for servicing on the scheduled collection 
day.   

g) No person, except a refuse collector, shall remove any refuse from any 
premise other than his or her own, without the property owner’s 
permission. 

h) Each refuse customer served by the City or a licensed private hauler 
shall conform to the rules and regulations relating to refuse collection 

and disposal as specified by the Director of Public Works under authority 
granted in Section 929.10 of the City Code. Current rules and 
regulations establishing these procedures shall be available to all refuse 

customers and licensed private haulers.  

 

929.06. - Deposit of refuse in proper containers/length of storage/location of 

containers 

(a) All refuse being disposed of must be contained within appropriate 
collection containers whether being serviced by the City or licensed 
private hauler.   

(b) No refuse container may be placed within the public right-of-way for 

more than 24 hours preceding or following the servicing of that 

container by the City or private refuse hauler. 

(c) Refuse containers must be stored in locations as determined appropriate 

by applicable zoning regulations, HOA provisions, or property deed 

restrictions. 

 

929.07. - City's refuse collection times.  

a) The City shall collect from residential and commercial premises within 
the City at least once every week in accordance with schedules, routes 

and policies as established by the Director.  Collection days may be 
adjusted during weeks where the City observes a holiday such that 
normal City operations are suspended.   

b) Yard waste is collected on a regular weekly basis coinciding with the 
regular residential collection schedule, from April through November, 
and in January for Christmas Tree collections.     

 



 

 

  Page 5 

929.09. - Collection charges.  

(a) All residential and commercial premise in the City subscribing to city 
refuse collection service shall be individually billed by the Finance 

Director in accordance with provisions contained in Section 929.08 of 
the City Code, unless such charges are waived by the City Manager due 

to unusual or practical considerations of a particular situation. 

(b) In cases where multiple customers occupy the same property or 
building, the City may elect to invoice the property owner for refuse 

collection services instead of individual tenants.  

(c) Charges for collection of commercial customers shall be based upon the 
analysis of the type of service rendered and shall be computed by the 

Director of Public Works in accordance with the Fee Schedule in Section 
197.02 of the City Code.  

(d) Commercial refuse customers requesting additional dumpster pickups 
will be charged a fee per pickup. 

(e) The monthly collection rate for customers assigned to a publically 

accessible dumpster shall be determined by the Director, and generally 
be in line with the rate that would be charged if the customer had an 

individual refuse container on their respective property.   

(f) An individual 55 years of age or older living alone may apply for a senior 
citizen discount rate.  

(g) Bag tags may be utilized as a method of disposing of additional bags of 
refuse or other household items exceeding the allowable volume of 
refuse which can be contained within a tipcart with the lid closed.  Bag 

tags may be purchased at a cost set forth in the Fee Schedule in Section 
197.02 of the City Code. 

(h) When requesting a temporary discontinuation of refuse collection 
services, a fee provided in the Fee Schedule will be assessed to have the 
container(s) removed. When the account is reactivated an additional fee 

will be assessed to have the container(s) returned. If container(s) is/are 
not removed charges will continue to be assessed on a monthly basis.  

(i) Changes to container sizes at the request of the customer will be allowed 
within a 30-day grace period of the initial establishment of service 
without a fee being assessed. Changes made after the 30-day grace 

period will be assessed a fee. Changes will be permitted only twice within 
a calendar year.  

(j) In cases where there are no established rates, the Director may establish 

classifications of service and fix rates governing such classifications. 
When such classifications are made and rates established, they shall 



 

 

  Page 6 

have the same force and effect as though they were a part of this 
Section.  

(k) The Director may modify the above charges if particular circumstances 

or conditions require it.  

 

929.10. - Director's collection rules and regulations.  

The Director of Public Works for the purpose of collecting and disposing of 
refuse, is hereby authorized and directed to make such rules and regulations 

as are necessary or convenient therefore, such regulations to have the same 
validity as ordinances when not repugnant thereto or to the Constitution or 
laws of the State.  

 

929.11. - Private collector requirements.  

a) All private collectors shall conform to the rules and regulations regarding 

licensing requirements as provided within the Ohio Revised Code.    

b) The transportation of refuse by private collectors or haulers shall be in 

vehicles covered in such a manner as to prevent the littering of the public 
ways of the City in any manner. Collection vehicle requirements are 
governed by rules and regulations as provided within the Ohio Revised 

Code.    

 

929.12. - Disposal at an approved site.  

No person shall dispose of, bury, burn or dump within the corporate limits 
of the City any refuse created within or without the City. All refuse shall be 

conveyed to and disposed of at an appropriately licensed municipal waste 
disposal site.  

 

929.99. - Penalty.  

Whoever violates any provision of this chapter is guilty of a minor 
misdemeanor. A separate offense shall be deemed committed each day during 

or on which a violation occurs or continues.  

 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  11    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-30    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: SECOND    PUBLIC HEARING:  YES 
       May 8, 2017 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  William L. Ferrigno, P.E. 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 521.08 OF CHAPTER 521 OF THE 
CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF THE CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO ESTABLISHING 
AUTHORITY TO REMOVE LITTER, AND THE RIGHT TO AN APPEAL OF A 
NOTICE OF VIOLATION. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City has considered changes to the rules and regulations regarding the 
littering and deposit of garbage and waste material within the downtown 
business district and other locations throughout the community.  Current code 
prescribes a lengthy process that can take as long as several days to provided 
written notification to violators when determining that refuse or other 
discarded items have been improperly placed within the public right of way.  
There are certain instances when the city has determined that leaving the 
illegally deposited refuse in the right of way is neither acceptable nor desirable, 
and prefers to have the refuse or debris immediately removed by city staff.  
 
Section 521.08 is also being amended to provide for the right to appeal by any 
individual or entity being served a notice of violation of the provisions of this 
section.                          
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 



Current code does not prescribe a means to address the immediate removal of 
illegally deposited materials within the public right of way.  Proposed changes 
to the code will allow for the City Manager to make such determination and 
cause such refuse to be collected and disposed of in a timely basis.  Current 
code also is absent of an appeal process for individuals or entities served a 
notice of violation.  
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Potential changes to the rules governing refuse collection where discussed at 
the recent Public Works and Utilities Committee who subsequently deferred the 
presentation of such changes to full council for additional consideration.   
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
The number of cases whereby the proposed provisions would be exercised is 
likely to be minimal.  Collecting and disposing of illegally deposited refuse 
without imposing fees for such violations will have minimal financial impact on 
the city. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
Proposed change provides the authority for the City Manager to make a 
determination regarding violations and to direct staff to remove illegally 
deposited refuse.  Also allows any notice of violation to violations of this section 
to be appealed to the Public Works and Utilities Committee. 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
William L. Ferrigno, P.E., Director of Public Works/City Engineer 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval   
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
None 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-30 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 521.08 OF 
CHAPTER 521 OF THE CODIFIED ORDINANCES OF 
THE CITY OF DELAWARE, OHIO ESTABLISHING 
AUTHORITY TO REMOVE LITTER, AND THE RIGHT 
TO AN APPEAL OF A NOTICE OF VIOLATION. 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Delaware Codified Ordinances contains certain 

rules and regulations governing littering and deposit of garbage and waste 
material upon public property; and  

 
WHEREAS, violations to these rules require a prescribed notification 

process and schedule in order for remediation of the violation, and for fines to 
be levied; and 

  
 WHEREAS, there are instances that a more immediate response to 

addressing such violation is desirable outside of the timeframe currently 
prescribed by existing code; and   

 
WHEREAS, individuals or entities receiving a notice of violation are not 

provided a process by which to appeal such notice or associated charges. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
SECTION 1.  That Section 521.08 be amended to include the following:  
 
521.08 (e) If the city manager or designated representative makes a 

determination that such an accumulation or deposit of material specified in 
subsections (a) or (b) presents an immediate safety risk, hazard, or otherwise 
objectionable public nuisance to adjacent property owners, pedestrians or 
motorists, the city may immediately cause the deposit or accumulation to be 
removed.  

 
521.08 (f) Charges incurred under sections (d) may be appealed within 30 

days of the charge.  Appeals shall be heard by the Public Works and Utilities 
Committee.  If an appeal is timely filed, charges will not become due until the 
committee has issued a decision. 

  
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code. 



 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
         ABSTAIN ____ 

    
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
         ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _________________________        ________________________     

CITY CLERK     MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  12    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO:     RESOLUTION NO: 17-30 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  John Donahue, Fire Chief 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO AN 
AMENDED AGREEMENT WITH DELAWARE COUNTY OFFICE OF HOMELAND 
SECURITY AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT (DCOHSEM) TO COORDINATE 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES WITHIN DELAWARE COUNTY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The City of Delaware coordinates emergency management with other local 
political jurisdictions through Delaware County Office of Homeland Security 
and Emergency Management. The existing funding mechanism is based on a 
set per capita rate. Local jurisdictions pay $.40 per capita and the county pays 
$.20 per capita. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Decreases in funding of emergency management grants and community growth 
is requiring the need to adjust the funding mechanisms to sustain funding and 
operations.  The attached agreement is included.   
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
This new funding mechanism would take effect in 2018. If the model was used 
today based on the 2017 budget, no additional costs would be required. 



 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
None 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
John Donahue, Fire Chief 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Amended Agreement For A Countywide Emergency Management Agency 



RESOLUTION NO. 17-30 
 
 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER 

TO ENTER INTO AN AMENDED AGREEMENT WITH 
DELAWARE COUNTY OFFICE OF HOMELAND 
SECURITY AND EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
(DCOHSEM) TO COORDINATE EMERGENCY 
MANAGEMENT ACTIVITIES WITHIN DELAWARE 
COUNTY. 

 
WHEREAS, Delaware County has updated the 2012 Emergency 

Management Agreement to update the funding model; and 
 
WHEREAS, the funding model needs to be amended due to decreases in 

funding from grants and increased costs; and 
 
WHEREAS, Delaware County requests that the City of Delaware take 

measures to formally adopt the revised Agreement attached hereto. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DELAWARE, OHIO THAT: 
 
 SECTION 1. The City Manager is hereby authorized to accept the revised 
Agreement with Delaware County Office of Homeland Security and Emergency 
Management (DCOHSEM). 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of it s committees concerning and relating to the passage 
of this Resolution were taken in an open meeting of this Council.  
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 











  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO: 13    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-31    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2017 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO 
PROVIDE FUNDING FOR COMPLETING A MULTI-USE TRAIL EXTENSION ON 
THE SPRINGFIELD BRANCH TRAIL, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
The Springfield Branch Trail currently ends at the David St/Ross St intersection 
and the proposed project would extend the trail approximately 670 feet to Todd 
St and complete a gap in the current trail system. The requested supplemental 
is equal to the payment that was required by the City during the Development 
Plan approvals for the Howald Industrial Park in the amount of $14,000.00. The 
work will be performed by City staff and is planned to be completed in the 
summer of 2017.  
   
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
An appropriation for this work was not included in the 2017 City Budget. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
Requires $14,000.00 allocation from the unencumbered balance of the Project 
Trust Fund. 
 



 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Ted Miller, Parks and Natural Resources Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval 
   
ATTACHMENT(S) 
Trail Exhibit 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-31 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2017 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
FUNDING FOR COMPLETING A MULTI-USE TRAIL 
EXTENSION ON THE SPRINGFIELD BRANCH TRAIL, 
AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

 
 WHEREAS, as part of the development plan approvals for the Howald 
Industrial Park, the developer agreed to contribute $14,000.00 toward the cost 
of extending the Springfield Branch Trail from the current terminus west and 
north to Todd St.; and  
 
 WHEREAS, the $14,000.00 payment was received by the City in November 
of 2016, and 
 
 WHEREAS, preparations are being made to construct the trail extension; 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, an appropriation for this work was not included in the 2017 
City Budget. 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 
Delaware, State of Ohio: 
  

SECTION 1.  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Project Trust Fund, $14,000.00, increasing the following account: 

 
   Howald/Springfield Trail (705-7050-5508)     $14,000.00 
    
 SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

SECTION 3. EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 
safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to provide timely 
construction of the new trail extension, and as such will be in full force and be 
in effect immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
 
 



VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



D
A

V
I
D

 
S

T

ROSS ST

TODD ST

P
A

R
K

 S
T

CONNECT TO

EXISTING TRAIL

CONNECT TO

EXISTING STREET

0 

200'

Site Plan

DATE:

SCALE:

SHEET SIZE:

1"=200'

APRIL 13, 2017

8.5 x 11

SPRINGFIELD

BRANCH TRAIL

NORTH

400'100'



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  14    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-32    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       May 22, 2017 at 7:20 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 1111 
SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING CODE 
PERTAINING TO ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND BONDING.  
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
Per Chapter 1130.04 Amendments initiated by Planning Commission or City 
Council. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on May 3, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
  
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 



 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval  
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-32 
 

AN ORDINANCE APPROVING AN AMENDMENT TO 
CHAPTER 1111 SUBDIVISION REGULATIONS OF THE 
PLANNING AND ZONING CODE PERTAINING TO 
ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS AND 
BONDING.  
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of  
May 3, 2017, recommended approval of an amendment to Chapter 1111 
Subdivision Regulations of the Planning and Zoning Code pertaining to acceptance 
of public improvements and bonding  (PC 2016-2797). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the amendment to Chapter 1111 Subdivision Regulations 
of the Planning and Zoning Code pertaining to acceptance of public improvements 
and bonding is hereby confirmed, approved, and accepted. 
 

SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 















































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  15    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-33    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: YES 
       May 22, 2017 at 7:25 p.m. 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A STREET VACATION OF STRATFORD DRIVE 
FOR COUGHLIN’S CROSSING ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 77.102 
ACRES ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED EAST OF US 23, WEST OF 
STRATFORD ROAD AND NORTH OF MEEKER WAY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 910 Street and Alley Vacation of the Codified 
Ordinances. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on May 3, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 



 
PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented condition. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 17-33 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A STREET VACATION OF 
STRATFORD DRIVE FOR COUGHLIN’S CROSSING 
ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 77.102 ACRES 
ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A 
PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND 
LOCATED EAST OF US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD 
ROAD AND NORTH OF MEEKER WAY. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of May 3, 2017 
recommended approval of a Street Vacation for Stratford Drive for Coughlin’s 
Crossing encompassing approximately 77.102 acres zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located east of US 23, 
west of Stratford Road and north of Meeker Way (PC 2017-0692).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Street Vacation for Stratford Drive for Coughlin’s 
Crossing encompassing approximately 77.102 acres zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural 
District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located east of US 23, 
west of Stratford Road and north of Meeker Way, is hereby confirmed, approved, 
and accepted with the following condition that: 
 
1. The applicant shall contact OUPS to determine if any private utilities are 

located in the vacated alley right-of-way and shall be responsible for any 
relocations or easements requested by these utilities (if existing).  
 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 

































































































































































































































  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  16    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-34    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION PLAT FOR COUGHLIN’S 
CROSSING ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 77.102 ACRES ZONED A-1 PMU 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED EAST OF US 23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD AND 
NORTH OF MEEKER WAY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1111.04 Final Plat requirements of the 
zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on May 3, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 17-34 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL SUBDIVISION 
PLAT FOR COUGHLIN’S CROSSING ENCOMPASSING 
APPROXIMATELY 77.102 ACRES ZONED A-1 PMU 
(AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED 
USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED EAST OF US 
23, WEST OF STRATFORD ROAD AND NORTH OF 
MEEKER WAY. 
 

 WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of May 3, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Subdivision Plat for Coughlin’s Crossing 
encompassing approximately 77.102 acres zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located east of US 23, west of 
Stratford Road and north of Meeker Way (PC 2017-0691).  

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Subdivision Plat for Coughlin’s Crossing 
encompassing approximately 77.102 acres zoned A-1 PMU (Agricultural District 
with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located east of US 23, west of 
Stratford Road and north of Meeker Way, is hereby confirmed, approved, and 
accepted with the following conditions that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 

water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department. 

2. Any new or existing utilities to be constructed and/or extended within the 
development shall comply with the City minimum requirements and as 
approved by the City Director of Utilities. All utilities shall be underground 
except for street and parking lot light poles. 

3. An access easement through lot 1 to the Chesrown Property to the north to 
give access to the spine road and ultimately US 23 shall be delineated, 
executed and recorded at the County concurrent with or prior to 
development of the Final Development Plan for lot 1or before. The applicant 
shall ensure Chesrown’s concurrence with such easement and its alignment 
prior to submission. A note on the Final Subdivision Plat shall document 
the subject easement requirement.    
 



4. A pedestrian path/bike path easement shall be required from lot 5 to lot 1 
to the Chesrown property to the north for a future bike path when lots 1 
and 5 are developed.  A note on the Final Subdivision Plat shall document 
the subject easement requirement.    

5. The tree replacement schedule and fee requirements shall be documented 
on the Final Subdivision Plat. 

6. After the Final Subdivision Plat is approved and recorded, administrative 
staff level minor lot splits and lot line adjustments may be allowed 
thereafter so long as the request is consistent with the approved 
development text and then current zoning regulations. These will be 
processed pursuant to the minor modifications of the approved development 
text. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  17    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-35    RESOLUTION NO: 
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT PLAN FOR COUGHLIN’S 
CROSSING PHASE 1 (INFRASTRUCTURE) ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 
77.102 ACRES ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED 
MIXED USE OVERLAY DISTRICT) AND LOCATED EAST OF US 23, WEST OF 
STRATFORD ROAD AND NORTH OF MEEKER WAY. 
 
BACKGROUND: 
See attached staff report. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED: 
To achieve compliance with Section 1129.06 Development Plan Review 
Procedures of the zoning code. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
Planning Commission approved this case 7-0 on May 3, 2017. 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S): 
N/A 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
 



PRESENTER(S): 
David Efland, Planning and Community Development Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends approval as submitted with the documented conditions. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S) 
See attached 



 ORDINANCE NO. 17-35 
 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A FINAL DEVELOPMENT 
PLAN FOR COUGHLIN’S CROSSING PHASE 1 
(INFRASTRUCTURE) ENCOMPASSING APPROXIMATELY 
77.102 ACRES ZONED A-1 PMU (AGRICULTURAL 
DISTRICT WITH A PLANNED MIXED USE OVERLAY 
DISTRICT) AND LOCATED EAST OF US 23, WEST OF 
STRATFORD ROAD AND NORTH OF MEEKER WAY. 
 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission at its meeting of May 3, 2017 
recommended approval of a Final Development Plan for Coughlin’s Crossing Phase 
1 (infrastructure) encompassing approximately 77.102 acres zoned A-1 PMU 
(Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located east 
of US 23, west of Stratford Road and north of Meeker Way (PC 2017-0689). 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City of 

Delaware, State of Ohio: 
 
 SECTION 1.  That the Final Development Plan for Coughlin’s Crossing 
Phase 1 (infrastructure)  encompassing approximately 77.102 acres zoned A-1 
PMU (Agricultural District with a Planned Mixed Use Overlay District) and located 
east of US 23, west of Stratford Road and north of Meeker Way, is hereby 
confirmed, approved, and accepted with the following conditions that: 
 
1. The applicant needs to obtain engineering approvals, including any storm 

water and utility issues that need to be worked out through the Engineering 
and Utilities Departments.  All comments regarding the layout and details of 
the project are preliminary and subject to modification or change based on 
the final technical review by the Engineering Department. 

2. Any new or existing utilities to be constructed and/or extended within the 
development shall comply with the City minimum requirements and as 
approved by the City Director of Utilities. The proposed public sanitary main 
running north and south across the site needs to be upsized to serve its full 
tributary area shall be extended to the north property line of the 
development All utilities shall be underground except for the street and 
parking lot light poles. 

3. All ponds shall include fountains, bubblers and/or aerators to prevent 
stagnant water. 

4. All State and local rules and regulations regarding the regulation of water 
courses within the site shall apply as they are in effect at the time of 
permitting. 



5. The applicant shall be responsible for any roadway improvements and/or 
financial obligations of the traffic impact study approval per ODOT, City 
Engineer and County Engineer.  

6. An access easement through lot 1 to the Chesrown Property to the north to 
give access to the spine road and ultimately US 23 shall be delineated, 
executed and recorded at the County concurrent with or prior to 
development of the Final Development Plan for lot 1or before. The applicant 
shall ensure Chesrown’s concurrence with such easement and its alignment 
prior to submission. A note on the Final Subdivision Plat shall document 
the subject easement requirement.    

7. A pedestrian path/bike path easement shall be required from lot 5 to lot 1 
to the Chesrown property to the north for a future bike path when lots 1 
and 5 are developed.  A note on the Final Subdivision Plat shall document 
the subject easement requirement.    

8. The applicant shall be required to provide easements for a sidewalk (if it 
cannot be accommodated within the existing right-of-way as determined by 
the City Engineer) along US 23 from Hawthorn Boulevard south to Meeker 
Way. A payment in lieu of construction of $14,560 (416 linear feet x $35 per 
linear foot to construct) per the City Engineer shall be required along 
Reserve A prior to approval of the engineering plans for Phase 1 
(infrastructure). 

9. Except for along US 23, concrete sidewalks shall be 5 feet in width, achieve 
compliance with minimum engineering requirements and shall be provided 
on one side of the public spine road. 

10. The developer shall install street trees along the public spine road, install 
landscaping along Stratford Road from Meeker Way to Reserve B, install 
landscaping around Reserves A, B and C and install the mounding and 
landscaping adjacent to Elliot Estates Subdivision along the northern 
portion of the development in Phase 1 (infrastructure) per the landscape 
plan. 

11. The northern mounding and landscape buffer shall be 40 feet wide 
including the bike path and the mound shall be consistently 6 foot high as 
required by the approved development text. 

12. Stone piers shall be installed at regular intervals along the US 23 frontage 
of the development to be consistent with the adopted Gateways and 
Corridor Plan. Stone piers expected along US 23 can be installed lot by lot 
basis as developed but shall be installed in Reserve A with this Final 
Development Plan Phase 1 (infrastructure) approval 

13. A stone monolith shall be installed at the US 23 and Hawthorn Boulevard 
entrance into the development per the adopted Gateways and Corridor Plan. 

14. The roundabout shall have landscaping and/or a monument installed 
within the interior grass area for aesthetic and safety purposes. 



15. The lot just south of Meeker Way along Stratford Road shall be documented 
as Reserve D. 

16. According to the tree replacement schedule, the applicant shall pay 
$100,000 or plant 1,000 caliper inches of trees prior to approval of 
engineering drawings for Phase 1 (infrastructure). 

17. The tree replacement schedule and fee requirements shall be documented 
on the Final Subdivision Plat 

18. Any landscape plans shall be reviewed and approved by the Shade Tree 
Commission. 

19. Any lighting plan shall be reviewed and approved by the Chief Building 
Official and shall be consistent with the zoning code and approved 
development text. 

 
SECTION 2.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 

this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the law 
including Section 121.22 of the Revised Code. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____  
          ABSTAIN ____ 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 



  FACT SHEET 
 
 
AGENDA ITEM NO:  18    DATE: 05/08/2017 
 
ORDINANCE NO: 17-36    RESOLUTION NO:  
 
READING: FIRST     PUBLIC HEARING: NO 
 
 
TO:  Mayor and Members of City Council  
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
VIA:  Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
 
TITLE OF PROPOSED ORDINANCE/RESOLUTION:  
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2017 APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO 
PROVIDE FUNDING FOR DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH THE 
VARIOUS PURPOSE IMPROVEMENT AND REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2017 
ISSUED BY THE CITY, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 
 
BACKGROUND:   
The city recently issued additional debt to pay for the construction of Fire/EMS 
Station 304 and to refinance outstanding debt previously issued in 2006.  The 
debt issuance was originally planned for last year but market conditions 
compelled a delay until 2017.  Consequently funds were not appropriated in 
2017 for the costs associated with issuing the debt.  I have provided an 
attachment that breaks down the issuance costs to be paid by the city from the 
proceeds of the debt issuance. 
 
REASON WHY LEGISLATION IS NEEDED:    
To appropriate funds to pay for bond issuance costs. 
 
COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATION: 
N/A 
 
FISCAL IMPACT(S):   
The bond issuance costs have been added to the principal amount borrowed and 
will be paid back along with principal and interest charges over the next 15 years.  



The City’s Capital Improvement Plan includes the future debt service 
requirements for this issue. 
 
POLICY CHANGES: 
N/A 
 
PRESENTER(S): 
Dean Stelzer, Finance Director 
 
RECOMMENDATION: 
Approval with emergency clause. 
 
ATTACHMENT(S):   
Summary of city paid bond issuance costs.  
 



ORDINANCE NO. 17-36 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 2017 
APPROPRIATIONS ORDINANCE TO PROVIDE 
FUNDING FOR DEBT ISSUANCE COSTS ASSOCIATED 
WITH THE VARIOUS PURPOSE IMPROVEMENT AND 
REFUNDING BONDS, SERIES 2017 ISSUED BY THE 
CITY, AND DECLARING AN EMERGENCY. 

WHEREAS, the City had planned to issue bonds in 2016 to provide 
funding for construction of Fire Station 304 and to refund the outstanding 2006 
general obligations bonds; and  

WHEREAS, in November of 2016 a decision was made to delay the bond 
issue as market interest rates on municipal bonds had increased substantially 
after the presidential election; and 

WHEREAS, bond issuance costs typically associated with a bond issue 
had not been included in the 2017 Budget ordinance; and 

WHEREAS, the bond issue was recently priced and will close on May 10, 
2017; and 

WHEREAS, a supplemental appropriation to the 2017 Budget will be 
needed to pay the issuance costs on the bonds. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the Council of the City 
of Delaware, State of Ohio: 

SECTION 1.  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the General Bond Retirement Fund $60,000 increasing the following 
account: 

Professional Services (300-3000-5230) $ 60,000 

SECTION 2.  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Water Fund $36,000 increasing the following account: 

Administration - Professional Services (530-5310-5230) $ 36,000 

SECTION 3.  That there is hereby appropriated from the unencumbered 
balance of the Sewer Bond Fund $10,000 increasing the following account: 

Administration - Professional Services (540-5410-5230) $ 10,000 



   SECTION 4.  This Council finds and determines that all formal actions of 
this Council and any of its committees concerning and relating to the passage of 
this Ordinance were taken in an open meeting of this Council, and that all 
deliberations of this Council and any of its committees that resulted in those 
formal actions were in meetings open to the public, all in compliance with the 
law including Section 121.22 of the Ohio Revised Code.  
 

SECTION 3. EMERGENCY CLAUSE.  That this ordinance is hereby 
declared to be an emergency measure necessary to provide for the public peace, 
safety, health and welfare of the City and for the further reason to provide timely 
payment of bond issuance costs, and as such will be in full force and be in effect 
immediately upon its passage. 
 
 
VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
EMERGENCY CLAUSE: YEAS____NAYS____  
     ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
PASSED: _________________________, 2017 YEAS____ NAYS____ 
      ABSTAIN ____ 
 
 
ATTEST: _______________________________       ________________________ 

CITY CLERK    MAYOR 
 



Various Purpose Improvement and Refunding Bonds 
Series 2017 
Bond Issuance Costs 
May 2, 2017 
 
Purpose                                                                                      Amount     
Bond Counsel – Legal fees to prepare bond issue documentation 
and to provide a legal opinion supporting the tax-exempt purpose 
of the bonds. Squire, Sanders, and Boggs     $ 50,000 
 
Municipal Advisor – Consulting fees to assist the City with the structure 
of the issue, marketing and rating review guidance, and assisting in  
negotiating the final interest rate on the issue.  Rockmill Financial  $ 29,140 
 
Paying and Escrow Agent -  A bank the handles the future payments 
to bond holders and also executes the refunding transaction via the  
escrow fund established to pay of the outstanding debt. Huntington $   5,500 
 
Rating Agency – Fee paid for independent rating of the City’s  
financial condition.  Moody’s Rating Services    $ 14,000 
 
OMAC Fee – Mandated fee to publish notification of the bond sale, 
And to report the results of sale.  OMAC     $    5,000 
 
Official Statement Printing – Costs to print the City’s preliminary and 
final official statement document.  MuniDeals    $    1,000 
          $104,640  
 
In addition the investment banking firm Key Bank the City negotiated the bond sale with had 
fees of $32,500 which were included in the bond amount as issuance costs. 



City Manager Report 20170508 

 
 
 
 
TO:  Mayor Riggle and Members of Council 
 
FROM: R. Thomas Homan, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Miscellaneous Matters 
 
DATE: May 8, 2017 
 
 
1. Calendar 
 See Attached 
 
2. Per Section 73 Of The City Charter The City Manager Is To Report 

Contract Agreements 
 See Attached 
 
3. Bi-Weekly Meetings 
  
  April 24 

* Rotary 
* City Council 
April 25 
* COMMA Meeting 
April 27 
* Meeting with Paul Craft, Delaware City Schools 
* 2017 Heisler Business Ethics Dinner and Lecture-OWU 
April 28 
* 8th Annual City/County Employee Services Fair 
* Richwood Bank Ribbon Cutting 
May 1 
* Rotary 
* Youth Exchange Meeting 
May 4 
* Cheshire Intersection and Byers Auto Group Meeting 
* Meeting with Mayor Ginther 

 
4. Required Readings 
 March Fire Report 
 
  
 





CONTRACT APPROVAL – May 8, 2017 
 

VENDOR 
 

EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT 
2017 

AMOUNT 
 

DEPARTMENT 
Pavement Maintenance System, 
LLC 

Asphalt Repairs US 23 
Southbound-William St on ramp 

$109,134.52 Public Works 

Ohio Department of Public 
Safety 

MOU acceptance of equipment 
from the Ohio Department of 
Public Safety 

$0.00 Police  

JHR 2017 Code Enforcement Mowing 0-4,000 Sqft 
$40.00 

Planning 
 

Ohio Department of Natural 
Resources 

NatureWorks Local Grant Program $43,729.00 Parks  

     



Delaware Fire Department 

March 2017 Monthly Report 

 

 

 
 

Major Incidents 

 March 8, N. Houk Rd., Subject Struck by Vehicle 

 March 10, S. Sandusky St, Small Structure Fire,  

 March 18, Delaware Twp., Garage Fire 

 March 21, US 42 S, Subject Struck by Vehicle 

 

Other Activities 

 Station Tours 

 Mingo Super Heroes 

 SourcePoint – Meals on Wheels Recognition 

 Boy Scouts Merit Badge Training 

 St. Mary’s Fallas Celebration 

 Helpline - Senior Companions Program 

 Soups for Shelter 

 FOE – Chili Cook-Off 

 ACLS Recertification 

 Active Aggressor Training with PD 

 WDLR Delaware Digest – Spring Storms 

 

2010 Fire Levy Status 

 Equipment - Continuing 

 Committee has reviewed the pre-construction drawings on the new Quint Fire Truck. 

Members of the committee will be attending the Pre-Construction meeting April 10-13. 

Truck was ordered in September and delivery is expected in October 2017. 

 Three new Paramedic trucks were placed in-service and are operating at all of our Fire 

Station’s. 

PERFORMANCE REVIEW 2014 2015 2016 2017 March Year-to-Date % Year to Date % of Budget (+ / -)

Actual Actual Actual Budget Actual Actual Budget Completed Projected for Year

Total number of incidents 5,173 5,380 5,891 5,988 468 1,434 23.95% 25.00% -1.05%

     Fire 101 126 107 98 8 19 19.39% 25.00% -5.61%

     Rupture/Explosion 3 1 5 3 0 2 66.67% 25.00% 41.67%

     EMS 4,047 4,254 4,658 4,785 379 1,137 23.76% 25.00% -1.24%

     Hazardous Conditions 124 135 150 151 12 44 29.14% 25.00% 4.14%

     Service Calls 141 155 128 129 5 26 20.16% 25.00% -4.84%

     Good Intent 162 155 213 192 23 68 35.42% 25.00% 10.42%

     False Calls 589 541 621 619 39 135 21.81% 25.00% -3.19%

     Severe Weather 0 1 3 4 0 0 0.00% 25.00% -25.00%

     Other 6 12 6 7 2 3 42.86% 25.00% 17.86%

Number of medical transports 2,586 2,742 2,836 2,900 236 690 23.79% 25.00% -1.21%

Narcan Administration 55 43 64 64 3 10 15.63% 25.00% -9.38%

Percent of priority calls w/ response within 6 min 68% 74% 71% 70% 73% 72% 102.86% 25.00% -30.86%

Percent working structure fires ERF of 15 FF 

within 12 minutes
78% 85% 100% 70% 100% 100% 142.86% 25.00% 70.00%

     # Structure Fires 9 13 18 10 1 2 20.00% 25.00% -5.00%

     # Structure with personnel and Times 7 11 18 7 1 2 28.57% 25.00% 3.57%

Number of commercial inspections conducted 1,473 1,365 1,345 1,450 187 532 36.69% 25.00% 11.69%

Number of plans reviewed within five days 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100.00% 25.00% 100.00%

Number of fires greater than $10,000 8 12 9 10 1 2 20.00% 25.00% -5.00%

Number of fires of suspicious nature 5 6 3 4 0 0 0.00% 25.00% -25.00%

Hours of Training 13,335 10,977 12,454 10,000 1,320 3,557 35.57% 25.00% 10.57%



Delaware Fire Department 

March 2017 Monthly Report 

 
 Staff cars have been replaced in 2012-2016. This has included the implementation of 

retired police vehicles for station and inspector cars. 

 The new engine was delivered and placed in-service in April 2013. 

 The new paramedic truck was delivered and was placed in-service in January 2013. 

 The new ladder truck was delivered and was placed in-service in April 2012. 

 Personnel - Continuing 

 40 potential new hire candidate names were pulled on October 31, to advance to the 

application and agility process. Additional Agility Testing took place in December 2016. 

Background checks have been completed for the candidates and interviews are scheduled 

with the Fire Chief for the week of April 3. 

 Firefighters Kehlmier and Whitley began full-time work in January. These positions were 

filled due to resignations. FF Kehlmier and Whitley were previously Part-time 

Firefighters with our Department. 

 The total amount of new personnel hired since the new levy is 36. Some of these 

positions have filled open positions. 

 New Fire Station 304 - Continuing 

 Request for Qualifications for the design build construction was posted and were received 

on January 30. Pre-Proposal Meeting is scheduled for April 18. 

 October 24, took action to annex the St 304 property. Lot surveying took place for St 

304. 

 Property was purchased in 2011 at 821 Cheshire Rd. The property was leased out and the 

lease moved out on November 30, 2013. In 2014, we plan to begin the analysis and plans 

for an anticipated groundbreaking in 2016. 

 The opening of this Station is dependent on the increased staffing. This will be 

accomplished through the use of Part-Time personnel to supplement the staffing. The 

Part-Time personnel will be backfilling the open positions caused by personnel scheduled 

leaves. 

 Fire Station 303 - Completed 

 On September 27, 2013 we began operation 24/7. The Fire Station was dedicated on 

October 19, 2013. 

 

 

 

 

  



Delaware Fire Department 

March 2017 Monthly Report 

 
 

Council for Older Adults – Monthly Report on the Firehouse Coordinator 

 

 

  



Delaware Fire Department 

March 2017 Monthly Report 

 
 

 


	01 20170508 agenda
	CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS

	02 20170424 council minutes
	03 20170328 shade tree minutes
	04 20170405 planning minutes
	05 20170104 civil service minutes
	06 fact sheet ord 17-16  amend 1168 tree preservation
	07 ord 17-16  amend chapter 1168 tree preservation
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-16

	08 joint memo PCD and PNRD_5_4_2017_FINAL
	09 ord 17-16 amend chapter 1168 tree staff report
	10 fact sheet res 17-29, park naming policy
	10 res 17-29, park naming policy
	11 Park and Facilities Naming and Dedication Policy- final
	12 fact sheet ord 17-29Chapter 929 Refuse Collection
	13 ord 17-29 Chapter 929 Refuse Collection
	ABSTAIN ____

	14 CHAPTER 929 Final Revision 4.18.17
	15 fact sheet ord 17-30 Chapter 521.08 Littering
	16 ord 17-30  ODOT Chapter 521.08 Littering
	17 fact sheet res 17-30 amended countywide agreement EMA
	18 res 17-30 del co office homeland security emergency mgt agree
	19 amended agreement emergency management
	20 fact sheet ord 17-31 howald springfield trail
	21 ord 17-31 howald springfield trail
	22 HOWALD SPRINGFIELD BRANCH EXT
	Sheets and Views
	Layout1


	23 fact sheet ord 17-32 , amend chpt 1111 subdiv reg
	24 ord 17-32 , amend chpt 1111 subdiv reg
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-32
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	25 ord 17-32 chpt 1111 subdiv regulation staff
	26 fact sheet ord 17-33 , Coughlin's Crossing Street Vacation
	27 ord 17-33 , Coughlin's Crossing Street Vacation
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-33
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	28 coughlin crossing 2017-0689, 0691, 0692 staff report
	29 coughlin crossing 2017-fin dev plan staff drawing
	30 fact sheet ord 17-34 , fin subdiv plat coughlin cross
	31 ord 17-34 , fin subdiv plat coughlin crossing
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-34
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	32 fact sheet ord 17-35 , fdp coughlin's crossing phase 1
	33 ord 17-35  Coughlin's Crossing FDP Phase 1 Infrastructure  Ordiance
	ORDINANCE NO. 17-35
	VOTE ON RULE SUSPENSION:   YEAS____NAYS____

	34 fact sheet ord 17-36 ,bond issuance supplemental
	35 ord 17-36 , Bond Issuance Cost Supplemental
	36 ord 17-36 Issuance Cost summary to Council
	37 city managers report 20170508
	38 May Calender
	39 20170508 contract approval
	CONTRACT APPROVAL – May 8, 2017
	2017
	DEPARTMENT
	AMOUNT
	VENDOR
	EXPLANATION OF AGREEMENT

	Public Works
	$109,134.52
	Pavement Maintenance System, LLC
	Asphalt Repairs US 23 Southbound-William St on ramp

	$0.00
	Ohio Department of Public Safety
	MOU acceptance of equipment from the Ohio Department of Public Safety

	Planning
	0-4,000 Sqft $40.00
	JHR
	2017 Code Enforcement Mowing

	Parks 
	$43,729.00
	Ohio Department of Natural Resources
	NatureWorks Local Grant Program


	40 March Fire Report

